
 

 

 

 
City of Woodstock 

Office of the City Manager 
Phone (815) 338-4301   Fax (815) 334-2269 

citymanager@woodstockil.gov 
www.woodstockil.gov 

121 W. Calhoun Street          Roscoe C. Stelford III  
Woodstock, Illinois 60098         City Manager 
 

                       WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 

City Council Chambers 

May 19, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

                                 

Any Person Wishing to Address the City Council 

Must Approach the Podium, be Recognized by the 

   Mayor, and Provide Their Name and Address for the Record 

 

The complete City Council packet is available at the Woodstock Public Library, 

Woodstock City Hall, and via the City Council link on the City’s website, 

www.woodstockil.gov.  For further information, please contact the Office of the 

City Manager at 815-338-4301 or citymanager@woodstockil.gov. 

   

The proceedings of the City Council meeting are being audio-recorded only 

to aid in the preparation of the Minutes and are not retained as part of the 

permanent records of the City. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

ROLL CALL: 

 

 

FLOOR DISCUSSION 

 

 

Anyone wishing to address the Council on an item not already on the agenda may do 

so at this time. 

1. Public Comments 

2. Council Comments    

                   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.woodstockil.gov/
mailto:citymanager@woodstockil.gov


Woodstock City Council  

May 19, 2015 

Page Two 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: 
(NOTE: Items under the consent calendar are acted upon in a single motion.  There is 

no separate discussion of these items prior to the Council vote unless: 1) a Council 

Member requests that an item be removed from the calendar for separate action, or 2) 

a citizen requests an item be removed and this request is, in turn, proposed by a 

member of the City Council for separate action.) 

 

 A.        MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS: 

  May 5, 2015 City Council Meeting 

 

 

B. WARRANTS:       3663       3664 

 

 

C. MINUTES AND REPORTS:  

 Economic Development Commission Minutes – April 28, 2015 

  

    

D. MANAGER'S REPORT NO. 46 

 

1.  Appointment of City Clerk and Deputy City Clerk – Approval of the   

     appointment of Cindy  Smiley as City Clerk and Amy Weber as Deputy   

     City Clerk.  

 

2.   Liquor Amendment – Class E-5 – Adoption of an Ordinance amending 

     Title 3, Chapter 3, Liquor Control, of the Woodstock City Code creating  

     a Class E-5 Liquor License. 

 

 3.   E-5 Liquor Application Waiver – Approval to waive the moratorium  

       on the acceptance of applications for a Class E-5 Liquor License for the   

       Best Western Hotel at 990 Lake Avenue. 

 

  4. Façade Improvements – Approval of the allocation of Façade                   

                        Improvement Funds for 100-108 N. Benton, 112-114 Cass and 110 S.      

                        Johnson Street. 

 

  5.  Award of Contract – Downtown Brick Replacement -    Approval of 

the recommendation to waive the requirement for competitive bids and 

award of contract to Nierman Landscape and Design for Downtown 

brick replacement. 

 

  6.   Purchase – Wastewater Treatment Plant Grinder – Approval of the 

                   purchase of a new influent grinder for the Southside Wastewater  

                  Treatment Plant from JWC Environmental. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(46a) 

 

 

 

(46b)(Doc.1) 

 

 

 

(46c) 

 

 

 

(46d) 

 

 

 

(46e) 

 

 

 

 

(46f) 

 

 

 



 

Woodstock City Council  

May 19, 2015 

Page Three 

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

ADJOURN 

 

 

NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA), this 

and all other City Council meetings are located in facilities that are physically 

accessible to those who have disabilities.  If additional reasonable 

accommodations are needed, please call the City Manager’s Office at 815/338-

4301 at least 72 hours prior to any meeting so that accommodations can be made. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



MINUTES 

WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 

May 5, 2015 

City Council Chambers 

 

The regular meeting of the Woodstock City Council was called to order at 7:00 PM by Mayor 

Brian Sager on Tuesday, May 5, 2015 in Council Chambers at City Hall.  Mayor Sager explained 

the irregular meeting process that involves calling two different City Councils to order and noted 

that the swearing in ceremony will take place as well.  He then explained the consent calendar 

process and invited public participation. 

 

A roll call was taken.   

  

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: RB Thompson, Maureen Larson, Julie Dillon, Mark 

Saladin, Joseph Starzynski, Michael Turner, and Mayor Brian Sager 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: None 

 

STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Roscoe Stelford, City Attorney Ruth Schlossberg, Finance 

Director Paul Christensen, Public Works Director Paul Ruscko, Economic Development Director 

Cort Carlson, Planning and Zoning Director Joe Napolitano, Chief of Police Robert Lowen, IT 

Manager Dan McElmeel, Planning and Zoning Administrator Jim Kastner. 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:  Chief Deputy City Clerk Cindy Smiley 

 

C. Smiley affirmed that the Agenda before Council is a true and accurate presentation of the 

published agenda. 

 

Mayor Sager noted that Economic Development Director Cort Carlson has tendered his resignation 

and accepted a position as the Director of the Aurora Visitors’ and Convention Bureau.  Mayor 

Sager expressed appreciation to Mr. Carlson for his efforts to promote economic development in 

Woodstock.  He further noted that Planning and Zoning Director Joe Napolitano will assume the 

duties of Economic Development Director until such time as a new Director has been hired for that 

position.  

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Mayor Sager noted that it is his intent to remove Item B from the Consent Agenda which would 

result in only item A remaining. 

 

Motion by M. Turner, second by M. Saladin to dissolve the first Consent Agenda.  A roll call vote 

was taken.  Ayes:  J. Dillon, M. Larson, M. Saladin, J. Starzynski, RB Thompson, M. Turner, and 

Mayor Sager.  Motion carried unanimously 

 

A.  Minutes of Previous Meetings: 

            April 21, 2015 Regular Meeting 

 

Motion by J. Dillon, second by M. Larson, to approve the minutes of the April 21, 2015 Regular 

City Council meeting as presented.  Ayes: RB Thompson, M. Larson, J. Dillon, M. Saladin, M. 

Turner, Mayor Sager. Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried 

unanimously. 



Woodstock City Council 

5/5/15 

Page 2 of 10 

 

 

B.  Train Lease Agreement 

Mayor Sager stated that, to date, it has been the City’s intent in discussions with Union Pacific 

Representatives, Mr. Hart and the City Attorneys to: 

 First and foremost, protect the City by following all prescribed State and Local Laws; and 

 Identify a positive, constructive and mutually-beneficial resolution 

 

He further stated that in order to continue the discussions and forward those two important goals, 

the City Attorney has recommended adoption of an ordinance directing and authorizing 

negotiations and execution, as appropriate, of a termination, modification, extension and/or 

clarified rental rate for the Train Station Lease Agreement between Centerville Station, LLC and 

the City, provided that no liability or increased cost accrues to the City otherwise identified as 

Document 1. 

 

Mayor Sager then stated that Councilman Starzynski has suggested that Section 1 be amended to 

include Councilman Saladin as an active participant in the process and, further, that Councilman 

Saladin has agreed to participate at Council’s direction.  This would mean that Section 1 would 

read, “The City Manager, Mayor, and Councilman Saladin are hereby directed to oversee the 

negotiation and execution, as appropriate, of the termination, modification, extension and/or 

clarified rental rate for the train station sublease agreement between Centerville Station, LLC 

and the City, provided that no liability or increased cost accrues to the City.” 

 

Mayor Sager concurred with Councilman Starzynski’s recommendation and thanked both 

Councilman Starzynski and Councilman Saladin. 

 

There were no further comments from Council or the Public. 

 

Council concurred with amending Document 1 accordingly on its face.  Mayor Sager noted that 

Document 1 is, therefore, so amended to include Councilman Saladin as part of the process 

therein described. 

 

Motion by M. Turner, second by J. Starzynski to approve Ordinance No. 15-O-29, identified as 

Document No. 1, An Ordinance directing and authorizing negotiation and execution, as 

appropriate, of a termination, modification, extension, and/or clarified rental rate for the Train 

Station Lease Agreement between Centerville Station, LLC and the City of Woodstock provided 

that no liability or increased cost accrues to the City. 

 

A roll call vote was taken.  Ayes:  J. Dillon, M. Larson, M. Saladin, J. Starzynski, RB 

Thompson, M. Turner and Mayor Sager.  Nays:  None.  Abstentions:  None.  Absentees:  None.  

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

ADJOURN SINE DIE 

Mayor Sager noted that the next order of business is to adjourn this body Sine Die which means 

that it will be no longer active as the new Council will be sworn in.  He thanked outgoing 

Councilwoman Julie Dillon nothing that she has done an outstanding job of service to this body 

and the city of Woodstock.  He expressed his gratitude for her strong and devoted efforts, noting 

that she made sure she was informed on each issue coming before her.  He also expressed thanks 

to her family for the time that she devoted which took her away from them. 



Woodstock City Council 

5/5/15 

Page 3 of 10 

 

 

Councilwoman Dillon stated that it had been an honor and a privilege to serve. 

 

Motion by J. Dillon, second by RB Thompson, to adjourn this body Sine Die, at 7:16 PM on 

Tuesday, May 5, 2015.  Ayes:  J. Dillon, M. Larson, M. Saladin, J. Starzynski, RB Thompson, 

M. Turner, and Mayor Sager.  Nays:  None.  Abstentions:  None.  Absentees:  None.  Motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

ADMINISTRATION OF OATH TO NEW CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Mayor Sager noted that newly-elected councilmember Dan Hart could not be in attendance and 

will be sworn in at the May 19, 2015 meeting. 

 

City Attorney Ruth Schlossberg administered the Oath of Office to Councilwoman Maureen 

Larson. 

 

City Attorney Ruth Schlossberg administered the Oath of Office to Councilman Mark Saladin. 

 

Mayor Sager congratulated Councilwoman Larson and Councilman Saladin on their past service 

and their willingness to continue to serve and offered them his best wishes. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

The regular meeting of the Woodstock City Council was called to order by Mayor Brian Sager at 

7:22 PM on Tuesday, May 5, 2015 in the Council Chambers at City Hall. 

 

A roll call was taken.   

  

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: RB Thompson, Joseph Starzynski, Maureen Larson, Mark 

Saladin, Michael Turner, and Mayor Saladin 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: None 

 

STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Roscoe Stelford, City Attorney Ruth Schlossberg, Finance 

Director Paul Christensen, Public Works Director Paul Ruscko, Economic Development Director 

Cort Carlson, Planning and Zoning Director Joe Napolitano, Chief of Police Robert Lowen, IT 

Manager Dan McElmeel, Planning and Zoning Administrator Jim Kastner. 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:  Chief Deputy City Clerk Cindy Smiley 

 

A.  FLOOR DISCUSSION 

 

National Police Week 

Mayor Sager stated that it is important to recognize those individuals who serve with dedication to 

uphold the safety and welfare of our residence.  He welcomed the members of the Woodstock 

Police Department present and thanked them for their service to ensure a sense of safety and well-

being to the community. 

 

Mayor Sager invited Police Chief Robert Lowen to the podium and presented him with a 

Proclamation declaring May 11
th

 – 17
th

 to be National Police Week in the City of Woodstock.   



Woodstock City Council 

5/5/15 

Page 4 of 10 

 

 

Chief Lowen stated he was honored to accept the proclamation on behalf of the Woodstock Police 

Department commending the department as he did so. 

 

National Public Works Week 
Mayor Sager stated that the Public Works employees are available 24/7, 365 days per year to 

provide services to our residents which are often taken for granted, such as providing clean safe 

drinking water, proper transport and treatment of refuse, well-maintained streets, working fire 

hydrants, and snow removal among other things.  He further noted that many times, Public Works 

employees work long hours to provide these services. 

 

Mayor Sager invited Public Works Director Paul Ruscko to the podium and presented him with a 

Proclamation declaring May 17
th

 – 23
rd

 to be National Public Works Week in the City of 

Woodstock. 

 

P. Ruscko thanked the Council on behalf of the Department of Public Works, stating that the 

employees of that department take great pride in their work and sacrifice their time for the 

community to be available 24/7 to provide a better quality of life for the residents. 

 

Public Comment 

In anticipation of Public Comment, Mayor Sager prefaced this by stating that there are many 

opportunities for businesses to open in the City of Woodstock which exist because in the United 

States the opportunity exists for a free market enterprise system.  He noted, however, that in a non-

Home Rule community, which Woodstock is, the municipal government must abide by the laws of 

the State of Illinois, with the State being the ultimate power and authority.  He did note that the 

State passes certain rights and authority on to the municipality such as police protection, water 

provision, etc. and that the State also visits different regulatory authority upon different levels of 

government. 

 

He further stated that the State exerts greater control on non-Home Rule communities on many 

issues with their interest being balancing issues of zoning considerations of the local government 

with the free market enterprise system. 

 

He continued stating that when the City was presented with this business, it worked diligently to 

find a legal opportunity which would provide the City with greater control.  He noted that the City 

does have stricter controls than many other communities in McHenry County but that even those 

controls did not enable the City to stop the business.  Consequently, the City has been working 

with the business owner on a variety of issues including signage, the business display, and the 

window display.  He stated that the window display is felt by many to be inappropriate and that he 

has asked the business owner to modify the window, with the owner replying that he wished to 

wait until after the Council meeting to gauge the level of public concern and then he will work on 

modifications. 

 

M. Turner stated that this is not something that the City took lightly, noting that the City began to 

take steps in February in an attempt to find a legal remedy to prevent the business from opening.  

He stated that the City was very serious about trying to find ways to prevent this business from 

opening at that location. 

 



Woodstock City Council 

5/5/15 

Page 5 of 10 

 

He further noted that, because the business was opening in an area with proper zoning, Council 

approval was not needed.  Even so, he stated that the City went through exhaustive discussions to 

do everything within the bounds of the law. 

 

Julia Crenshaw, 1501 Moraine Court, Woodstock, stated she has read the letters between the two 

parties and understands that it was determined that the City could not legally stop this business (R 

Boutique) from opening.  Still, she says she has concerns about the store front.  She cited portions 

of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) concerning adult use which she feels supports her 

concerns.  She is concerned that the items in the window display and those that can be seen 

through the door can be seen by minors.  She suggested that the front window be required to 

follow the UDO and that the door be covered and shut. 

 

Ms. Crenshaw stated she is pleased to see that the Council is already addressing these issues and 

that the owner is amenable and hopes that these issues can come to a positive conclusion. 

 

Mayor Sager noted that there is a legal distinction between an adult use facility and a retail facility. 

 

Allen Stebbins, 508 Dean Street, Woodstock, stated he feels the Mayor’s arguments are weak at 

best.  He asked why the business owner did not locate in another community and what makes 

Woodstock attractive to this type of business.  Mr. Stebbins suggested that the City provide a 

zoned area where adult businesses can locate but exclude them from other zoning districts, such as 

was done in the change made for the medical marijuana dispensary.  He asked why the City is 

being reactive to this issue rather than being proactive with a change to the zoning ordinance.  Mr. 

Stebbins continued stating that he has watched his property value drop and is angry about the 

decisions made by Council recently.  He feels that economic development has turned around 

everywhere but in Woodstock and that the Council seems more concerned about the business 

owners than the homeowners. 

 

Eileen Vogel, Woodstock, stated she moved to Woodstock three years ago because it is a family-

oriented community.  She is concerned about young people passing by this business and talked 

about children going to the Square and having to pass by this business.  She feels that it is 

offensive, ugly, and “not Woodstock.”  She asked Council to do whatever can be done to stop the 

business from locating in Woodstock.  She noted that she moved here from a Home Rule 

community and realizes that they have more power than a non-Home Rule community.  She stated 

she would help in whatever way she can to help Woodstock attain Home Rule.  She asked Council 

to think about what Woodstock will be like in three years, or ten years from now if this type of 

business is not stopped.  Noting that Woodstock is a family community, she asked Council to do 

something for the sake of the families. 

 

Mayor Sager noted in reply to Mr. Stebbins’ question, the business owner indicated he was moving 

to Woodstock and is making it his home.  He further stated that the City tried to encourage him to 

locate in another community. 

 

Council Comments: 

RB Thompson noted that it is Cinco de Mayo and wished the Hispanic community “Feliz Cinco de 

Mayo.” 

 



Woodstock City Council 

5/5/15 

Page 6 of 10 

 

He also detailed for those present the festivities planned during the month of May for the Orson 

Welles Centennial Festival, noted that the Farmers Market is now open, and that Fair Diddley will 

be coming up.  He further noted that work is being completed on the stairs to the Sheriff’s House. 

 

M. Larson stated that her first reaction to the news that R Boutique was locating in Woodstock was 

the same as those who previously addressed the Council.  She assured them that the City has 

traveled down every avenue to address this issue and has hit a brick wall at every turn.  She asked 

City Attorney Ruth Schlossberg to describe those efforts and discuss the conversations she has had 

with Council and the Administration concerning the legalities of this issue so that they might 

understand the frustration that Council is feeling. 

 

After a brief description of zoning, property rights, and constitutional issues, R. Schlossberg stated 

that certain businesses are permitted in certain zoned areas as permitted uses.  Those businesses are 

allowed to open with no further approvals needed, pending building codes, etc.  Other businesses 

may be allowed to locate in a zoning district as a special use if they meet the requirements and 

obtain a special use permit.  These would include businesses who could work with the City to 

address any unique impact they would have on the neighborhood, traffic, etc. 

 

Ms. Schlossberg continued by saying that in Woodstock Adult Uses are designated as special uses 

because the City wishes to control the negative impact they may have, but adult use must be 

defined.  Adding to that, she stated that constitutionally there is a large body of case law regarding 

free speech concerning adult uses.  When the UDO was passed, the level of “adult use” items was 

set at 25% to conform to state law because, again, as a non-Home Rule community Woodstock is 

only allowed to regulate what is permitted by the state.  Consequently, the business owner does not 

need to obtain any type of special use permit or permission to open his business as long as he 

abides by the 25% threshold.  She further stated that if Woodstock was a Home Rule community, 

this 25% threshold could be lowered. 

 

Ms. Schlossberg stated that she and her colleagues looked closely and this business did not fall into 

the “adult use” special use category because the majority of his “stock and trade” did not fall 

within the “adult use” definition.  It was also noted that the business owner is very aware of the 

rules and has indicated that he will stay within the definition and understands that if he exceeds the 

25%, he could fall within the “adult use” category.  As long as he abides by the definition, the City 

does not have the authority to stop his business from opening. 

 

Mayor Sager noted that, as a result of the legal roadblocks, the City has worked to try to develop a 

positive relationship with the business owner so that he will work with the City to address some of 

the concerns, such as the previously mentioned window. 

 

Michael Stanard, Woodstock, stated that the best way to ensure that the business does not succeed 

is to not patronize it. 

 

M. Saladin stated that Council was forced to give serious consideration and weigh the desire to 

stop this business from locating in Woodstock with the expenditure of public funds that might be 

necessary to attempt this along with the expected outcome.  He gave the example of the Village of 

Libertyville vs. Lovers Lane in which the Village expended many thousands of dollars, but still 

lost in the end.  In this case, there was a legal decision made.  He stated that he is somewhat 

willing to take a risk but must be careful with public funds. 



Woodstock City Council 

5/5/15 

Page 7 of 10 

 

 

In response to a question from the public concerning monitoring, Mayor Sager stated that the City 

will continue to monitor the window display and the front door.  This will be done administratively 

and asked Council members and the public to help.  In addition, the business owner will be asked 

to provide sales reports to ensure that they are within the 25% range previously discussed. 

 

In response to a question from the public concerning the on-line portion of the business, R. 

Stelford stated that the City looked at this issue very carefully to see if this segment of his business 

was going to take place at the Calhoun Street location, increasing the amount of sales that could 

fall within the “adult use” category.  He stated that the internet sales are not generated in 

Woodstock and the City has been assured by the owner that the current activity would not result in 

the percentage of adult use items sold by the R Boutique business exceeding the 25% threshold. 

 

M. Turner noted that early in the process he took a strong stance, making sure that the business 

owner knew the City did not favor this venture.  Mr. Turner obtained information and advice from 

highly-skilled legal counsel and the City’s highly-skilled staff on many occasions.  The issue was 

taken to the point where it was obvious that the City would lose in Court, so the approach became 

to control what could be controlled.  He indicated that the City will continue to take a strong stance 

but will not be foolish with tax dollars.   

 

In response to various questions from the public in the audience, Mayor Sager stated that zoning 

laws can be changed once the City becomes Home Rule and that the zoning issue for the marijuana 

dispensary is a completely different issue.  In addition, the City did look into the possibility of 

changing the zoning ordinance, but the business owner immediately began work on the building 

which created the issue of changing the zoning of a business already there.  Also, R. Schlossberg 

stated that the City cannot use the 15% threshold used by the County because the state laws for 

counties and municipalities are different and the City must abide by the levels of authority granted 

to municipalities. 

 

In response to a question from the public in the audience, R. Schlossberg stated that the business 

owner has not submitted another business plan subsequent to the negotiations with the City, noting 

that he is not required to submit a business plan as long as his business falls within a permitted use.  

She further noted that a business plan would not be required for a book store or a shoe store for 

example because they are permitted retail uses. 

 

Ms. Schlossberg stated that she cannot emphasize enough that the City did not take this matter 

lightly and has done everything legally to address the issue, but that the business is a regular retail 

business until it violates the UDO and ceases to be a regular retail business. 

 

M. Saladin noted there are a number of new projects on the horizon which can’t be discussed at 

present because of contracts in the works.  He did note that the new Harley-Davidson and Porkies 

expansion are exciting and that the City expects businesses coming into the light industrial 

facilities that had been previously vacated. 

 

In response to a question from the public in the audience concerning the definition of an “adult 

use” item, M. Turner stated this was analyzed.  R. Schlossberg stated that there is a legal definition 

of adult use and lingerie does not fall within that definition. 

 



Woodstock City Council 

5/5/15 

Page 8 of 10 

 

Eileen Vogel, Woodstock, asked who will monitor the merchandise, stating that the store is not 

just selling lingerie.  Mayor Sager indicated that the City is aware that there are other items sold 

but that as long as those items do not go over the 25% threshold, the City can do nothing and that 

lingerie does not count in that 25%.  He further stated what is displayed and what is sold are two 

different things.  R. Stelford stated that the City is working with the business owner to make sure 

that threshold is not exceeded. 

 

In response to a question from the public in the audience, R. Schlossberg stated that the owner 

does not need a county permit. 

 

A member of the public thanked the Council and the Administration for the steps that have been 

taken. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion by M. Turner, second by M. Saladin, to concur with Consent Agenda Items B – D8. 

 

In response to a question from J. Starzynski concerning item D5 – UDO Amendment – Harley 

Davidson – R. Stelford stated that the incentive agreement with Harley Davidson addresses 

signage.  He further noted that HD wishes to have a sign in front of the store and maintain 

exposure of their brands.  He directed Council to the packet for sign placement. 

 

In response to a question from M. Saladin concerning Item D4 – UDO Amendment – Home Food 

Processing and Home Kitchens – C. Carlson stated that this amendment would take the need for a 

commercial kitchen out of the equation for a home kitchen but does not preclude it. 

 

B.        WARRANTS:   3661  3662  MFT 547 

 

C. MINUTES AND REPORTS:  

 Economic Development Commission Minutes – January 13, 2015 

 Building Board of Construction Minutes – April 13, 2015 

    

D. MANAGER'S REPORT NO. 45 
 

1.  Motor Fuel Tax for FY15/16 – Adoption of Resolution No. 15-R-14, identified as 

Document No. 2, appropriating $677,000 of Motor Fuel Tax from May 1, 2015 through 

April 30, 2016 for maintenance of streets and highways.  

 

2. Parking Ordinance – Adoption of Ordinance No. 14-O-30, identified as Document 

No. 3, approving a “No-Parking Place” along the South side of Kimball Avenue from the 

West Right-of-way line of Lake Avenue to a point 127’ to the West. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Woodstock City Council 

5/5/15 

Page 9 of 10 

 

 3.   Traffic Ordinances – Community Events - Approval of the following: 

 a.)  Ordinance No. 15-O-31, identified as Document No. 4, establishing temporary 

parking restrictions for the Girls on the Run 5K of Northwest Illinois on Sunday, May 

17, 2015. 

 b.)  Ordinance 15-O-32, identified as Document No. 5, establishing temporary traffic 

and parking restrictions for the annual Memorial Day parade and ceremony on 

Monday, May 25, 2015 

c.)  Ordinance No. 15-O-33, identified as Document No. 6, establishing temporary 

traffic and parking restrictions for D.C. Cobb’s Musicfest on Saturday, June 20, 2015 

and Sunday, June 21, 2015. 

d.) Ordinance No. 15-O-34, identified as Document No. 7, establishing temporary 

traffic and parking restrictions for the VFW Remember Our Heroes Car Show on 

Saturday, June  27, 2015. 

 e.) Ordinance No. 15-O-35, identified as Document No. 8, establishing certain 

temporary parking restrictions in and near Emricson Park on Saturday, July 4, 2015 

 f.)  Ordinance No. 15-O-36, identified as Document No. 9, establishing certain 

temporary parking restrictions for the McHenry County Fair from Wednesday, 

August 5 thru Monday, August 10, 2015. 

 

 

4. UDO Amendment – Home Food Processing and Home Kitchens –                              

Adoption of Ordinance No. 15-O-37, identified as Document No. 10, amending 

Chapter 2, “Definitions” and Section 7B.3.3 “Home Occupations” of the Woodstock 

Unified Development Ordinance. 

 

5.  UDO Amendment – Harley Davidson – Adoption of Ordinance No. 15-O-38, 

identified as Document No. 11, authorizing a variation of Section 13.8.2 of the City 

of Woodstock Unified Development Ordinance to allow two ground signs on the 

property at 2235 South Eastwood. 

 

6.  Major Investigation Assistance Team Agreement – Adoption of Resolution No. 15-

R-15, identified as Document No. 12, approving a mutual aid agreement with the 

Major Investigation Assistance Team of McHenry County (MIAT). 

 

7.  Award of Contract – Masonry Repairs – Approval to waive the requirement for 

competitive bids and award of contract for masonry repairs at City Hall to Spitson 

Masonry, Inc. for the lump sum of $28,000. 

 

8.  Award of Contract -Software- Approval of authorization to purchase the Civic 

Systems financial software package in the amount of $67,000 to be paid over 3 years 

and to authorize the purchase of hardware and software upgrades estimated in the 

amount of $6,000 

 

A roll call vote was taken.  Ayes:  M. Larson, M. Saladin, J. Starzynski, RB Thompson, M. Turner, 

and Mayor Sager.  Nays:  None.  Abstentions:  None.  Absentees:  None.  Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

 



Woodstock City Council 

5/5/15 

Page 10 of 10 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Motion by RB Thompson, second by M. Turner, to adjourn to Executive Session for the purpose 

of discussing: 

 

         Personnel (Open Meeting Act:5ILCS 120/2 (c)(1) 

          The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of 

 specific employees of the public body, including hearing testimony on a complaint lodged 

 against an employee to determine its validity.  

 

 City Manager’s Performance Evaluation 

 

A roll call vote was taken. Ayes: M. Larson, M. Saladin, J. Starzynski, RB Thompson, M. 

Turner, and Mayor Sager.  Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

The Woodstock City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 8:47 PM. 

 

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 

The City Council returned to Open Session at 10:26 PM. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Maureen Larson, Mark Saladin, Joseph Starzynski, RB 

Thompson, Michael Turner, and Mayor Sager. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: None 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  City Manager Roscoe Stelford and City Attorney Ruth Schlossberg 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:  Chief Deputy Clerk Cindy Smiley 

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

It was the Consensus of the Council that a discussion of the TAP be placed on the June 2, 2015 

agenda. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Motion by M. Saladin, second by M. Larson, to adjourn the regular meeting of the City Council 

to the City Council Workshop on May 15, 2015 at Stage Left Café.  Ayes: M. Larson, M. 

Saladin, M. Turner, RB Thompson, J. Starzynski and Mayor Sager.  Nays: None. Absentees: 

None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 10:32 PM 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

___________________________ 

Cindy Smiley 

Chief Deputy Clerk 

 























DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   1
TIME: 11:35:36                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100976  A TO Z ENGRAVING               NAMEPLATE                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT             11.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           11.50

 100977  ACCURATE PIANO                 PIANO TUNIN G SERVICE           PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                     229.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          229.50

 100978  ADVANTAGE SAFETY PLUS          RAIN PANTS                     PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        29.28
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           29.28

 100979  SUPPLY WORKS                   GARBAGE CLE AN-UP TOOLS         PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       238.80
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          238.80

 100980  AQUA FLOW PLUMBING INC         R.O.W. PERM IT                  ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                           100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          100.00

 100981  ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICE        UNIFORM CLE ANING               POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              27.77
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           27.77

 100982  RAFAEL ARRELLANO               COMPUTER CL ASS INSTRUCTION     PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   725.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          725.00

 100983  BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.         ENGINEERING  SERVICE            WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER/SEWER CAPI        175.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          175.00

 100984  LESLIE BEHRNS                  RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           600.00
                                        RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           585.00
                                        RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           600.00
                                        RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           495.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,280.00

 100985  BOHN'S ACE HARDWARE            SUPPLIES/MA TERIALS             POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              28.77
                                        WIRE                           PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        13.99
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           42.76

 100986  BOOKLETTERS                    E-NEWSLETTE R SERVICE           PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   960.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          960.00

 100987  BOTTS WELDING SERVICE          DRAIN VALVE                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               74.93
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           74.93



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   2
TIME: 11:35:39                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100988  BROWNELLS, INC.                SUPPLIES                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             611.05
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          611.05

 100989  JUDITH BROWN                   RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             228.00
                                        RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             105.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          333.00

 100990  DENO BURALLI, JR.              RED ROSE BA ND, MAY 2015        ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                         1,900.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,900.00

 100991  CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.           COMPUTER PA RTS                 CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / GENERAL ADMINIST      1,271.64
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,271.64

 100992  TARA CALABRESE                 RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             108.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          108.00

 100993  CALL ONE                       PHONE CHARG ES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT             60.24
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANC E DEPARTMENT             90.36
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES                60.24
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY & ECONOMIC D         60.24
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR        746.39
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             145.47
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION           4,110.40
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                     205.71
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   145.47
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,229.16
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        194.40
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        510.61
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  WIRELESS ALARM MONITORING / WIR ELESS ALARM MONI       -664.48
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        7,894.21

 100994  CARQUEST AUTO PARTS STORES     STEERING ST ABILIZER            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               34.39
                                        PIPE, SOIEN OID                 PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       711.02
                                        ALTERNATOR CORE RETURN         PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       -64.00
                                        WASHER PUMP                     POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              18.89
                                        OIL FILTER                     PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                         4.68
                                        AIR FILTERS , OIL FILTERS       PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        41.00
                                        SPARK PLUG                     PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                         2.19



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   3
TIME: 11:35:39                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 100994  CARQUEST AUTO PARTS STORES     OIL FILTER                     PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                         4.10
                                        SPARK PLUGS , OIL FILTER        PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        10.28
                                        AIR FILTER                     PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        35.64
                                        MOTOR TREAT MENT, AIR FILTER    PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        37.92
                                        SWAY BAR RE PAIR KIT            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               25.73
                                        OIL FILTERS , AIR FILTERS       PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        67.60
                                        FLARING TOO L KIT               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              29.92
                                        OIL FILTERS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         10.80
                                        BRAKE FLUID , AIR FILTERS       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               67.29
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,037.45

 100995  CENTEGRA OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH   SUMMER SEAS ONAL DRUG SCREEN    GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES                50.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           50.00

 100996  COMMUNITY PLUMBING COMPANY     PLUMBING RE PAIRS-BATES PARK    PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       167.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          167.00

 100997  CROWN RESTROOMS                RENTAL SERV ICES                PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        20.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           20.00

 100998  DAVEY TREE SERVICE             TREE  SERVI CE                  PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                     1,000.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,000.00

 100999  JULIE DOERR                    RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              60.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           60.00

 101000  TAMMY DUNN                     RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             346.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          346.50

 101001  ALAN DUNKER                    OFFICAL SER VICES               AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                   382.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          382.50

 101002  ASHLEY ESUNIS                  RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              45.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           45.00

 101003  FITNESS FACTORY OUTLET         DUMBELLS AN D RACK              RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             702.40
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          702.40



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   4
TIME: 11:35:39                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 101004  JILL FLORES                    RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             200.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          200.00

 101005  MARILYN FRENCH                 MEMBERSHIP REFUND              RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              20.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           20.00

 101006  ANNA FRIESEN                   RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             325.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          325.00

 101007  CHARLES GROVER III             REFERRAL - 2 NEW MEMBERS       RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              40.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           40.00

 101008  DON HANSEN'S ALIGNMENT AND     ALIGHNMENT SERVICES            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              411.75
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          411.75

 101009  JACLYN HANSHAW                 RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             230.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          230.00

 101010  TIM HICKS                      RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             660.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          660.00

 101011  HOWARD LEE & SONS, INC         REPLACEMENT  SUN COVER          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE               9.64
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL            9.64

 101012  INTERSTATE BATTERY             BATTERIES                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         17.99
                                        BATTERIES                      POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              82.60
                                        BATTERIES                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        170.90
                                        BATTERIES                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             101.60
                                        BATTERIES                      PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        39.85
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          412.94

 101013  ANITA JOHNSON                  RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             675.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          675.00

 101014  JOHN JUREWICZ JR               LEGAL COSTS , EASEMENT          CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / GENERAL ADMINIST        150.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          150.00

 101015  JANET KAYSER                   RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              57.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           57.00



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   5
TIME: 11:35:40                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 101016  SHIRLEY A. KOCH                RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             136.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          136.00

 101017  LA FONTAINE ENTERPRISES        2ND FLOOR R EMODEL              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                   5,950.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        5,950.00

 101018  NEVA E. LISS                   RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             324.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          324.00

 101019  DAN LORANZ                     COMPUTER CL ASS INSTRUCTION     PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   750.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          750.00

 101020  DAN MC ELMEEL                  CELL PHONE REIMBURSEMENT       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT            480.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          480.00

 101021  MC CANN INDUSTRIES, INC.       TUBE HYDRAU LIC                 WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        252.72
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          252.72

 101022  PAMELA MCDONALD                RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             718.75
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          718.75

 101023  JACK & CARI MC GUINN           WATER/SEWER  REFUND             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER & SEWER            16.69
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           16.69

 101024  MENARDS                        MATERIALS &  SUPPLIES           WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         23.27
                                        MATERIALS &  SUPPLIES           AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                    31.91
                                        BATTERIES                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY & ECONOMIC D         29.85
                                        HOSE FOR PA RK IN THE SQUARE    PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       102.89
                                        INSPECTOR S UPPLIES             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY & ECONOMIC D          4.49
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          192.41

 101025  METRO PROFESSIONAL PRODUCTS, I SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               49.88
                                        SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             182.41
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          232.29

 101026  MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT         MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              334.20
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          334.20



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   6
TIME: 11:35:41                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 101027  PAM MOORHOUSE                  CLEANING SU PPLIES              PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    15.76
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           15.76

 101028  NORTHERN ILLINOIS FENCE CO     REPAIRS TO KIDDIE POOL AT WWW  AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                 1,267.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,267.00

 101029  MOLLY O'CONNOR                 RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             460.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          460.00

 101030  OFFICE OF THE ILLINOIS STATE   CITY HALL B OILER INSPECTION    GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                     100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          100.00

 101031  JOSEFINA PALA                  RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER           1,249.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,249.50

 101032  ELLIE POWELL                   DANCE COSTU MES                 GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           186.11
                                        DANCE COSTU MES                 GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            23.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          209.61

 101033  PRECISION SERVICES & PARTS,    TIE RODS,HA LF SHAFT, IDLER ARM GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              387.43
                                        STABILIZER LINKS               POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              50.06
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          437.49

 101034  QUILL CORPORATION              CHAIR                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR         94.99
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           94.99

 101035  REICHERT CHEVROLET & OLDS      GASKETS                        PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        30.32
                                        GASKET                         PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        15.92
                                        RING, SEAL                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION                9.31
                                        TRANS COOLE R HOSES             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               78.46
                                        CONTROL                        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               81.37
                                        SHIFTER                        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               52.47
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          267.85

 101036  CHERYL REIMER                  RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             150.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          150.00

 101037  ROCK 'N' KIDS, INC             TOT ROCK/KI D ROCK              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           556.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          556.50



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   7
TIME: 11:35:41                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 101038  BRIDGET SALADIN                DANCE RECIT AL COSTUMES         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            60.19
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           60.19

 101039  RORY SCHNEIDER                 TOOLS                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             183.34
                                        MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             234.20
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          417.54

 101040  SCHINDLER ELEVATOR CORP.       ELEVATOR IN SPECTION            PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                     218.75
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          218.75

 101041  BECKY VIDALES                  CELL PHONE REIMBURSEMENT       AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                   180.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          180.00

 101042  COURTNEY SINDELAR              RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            45.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           45.00

 101043  STEINER ELECTRIC COMPANY       FIELD SERVI CE                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA       -647.16
                                        FIELD SERVI CE                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        639.07
                                        FIELD SERVI CE                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        882.80
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          874.71

 101044  TODAY'S UNIFORMS               UNIFORMS                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              12.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           12.00

 101045  RENEE TORREZ                   CHALLENGE C UPS                 GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            55.98
                                        SIGN HOLDER S FOR REC CENTER    RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              36.93
                                        CELL PHONE REIMBURSEMENT       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           180.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          272.91

 101046  KATHRYN TRIPP                  DECORATIONS  - ANNI PARTY       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                     7.99
                                        ITUNES GIFT  CARD-PRIZE         PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    30.00
                                        FLEECE FOR SUMMER PROGRAM      PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    19.16
                                        CUPCAKE CAK E - ANNI PARTY      PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    16.77
                                        PARTY SUPPL IES - ANNI PARTY    PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    14.92
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           88.84

 101047  JULIE M TROPP                  RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             120.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          120.00



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   8
TIME: 11:35:42                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 101048  WOODSTOCK MUSICAL THEATRE CO.  OILIVER - A PRIL 2015           ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                        20,987.44
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       20,987.44

 101049  WOODSTOCK POWER EQUIPMENT, INC U-JOINT ASS EMBLY               PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       107.64
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          107.64

 101050  JAMES & PAULINE YOUNG          MAILBOX REP LACEMENT            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               75.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           75.00

 101051  JOSE M. ZAMORANO               SERVICE                        RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             190.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          190.00

 101052  CARRIE ZAMARANO                MILEAGE REI MBURSEMENT          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    37.07
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           37.07

 101053  NICHOLAS WEBER                 MEETING SUP PLIES & LUNCH       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    31.54
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           31.54

 101054  KATHLEEN ZANK                  RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             270.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          270.00

 101055  MARIA CAMPBELL                 RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             300.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          300.00

 101056  ADVANTAGE SAFETY PLUS          UNIFORMS                       PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       163.20
                                        UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        163.20
                                        UNIFORMS                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              162.66
                                        UNIFORMS                       PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       197.30
                                        UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        197.30
                                        UNIFORMS                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              197.30
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,080.96

 101057  CONSERV FS                     REGULAR FUE L                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION                5.10
                                        REGULAR FUE L                   PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       235.47
                                        REGULAR FUE L                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         79.00
                                        REGULAR FUE L                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         50.97
                                        REGULAR FUE L                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          67.28
                                        REGULAR FUE L                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR         71.86



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   9
TIME: 11:35:42                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 101057  CONSERV FS                     DIESEL FUEL                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION            1,053.76
                                        DIESEL FUEL                     PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       599.38
                                        DIESEL FUEL                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        522.04
                                        DIESEL FUEL                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        176.43
                                        DIESEL FUEL                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              65.26
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,926.55

 101058  MONICA AMRAEN                  SENIORS REI MBURSEMENT          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY EVENTS               21.28
                                        EASEMENT AG REEMENT REIMBUSE    CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / GENERAL ADMINIST         40.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           61.28

 101059  SUPPLY WORKS                   SUPPLIES FO R VACUUM            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              21.70
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           21.70

 101060  ARARMARK                       UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         68.12
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           68.12

 101061  ASSOCIATED ELECTRICAL          COURTHOUSE RESTAURANT          TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND / TAX INCREMENT FI      1,501.30
                                        SERVICE @ E MRICSON PARK        PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       839.19
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,340.49

 101062  BOHN'S ACE HARDWARE            AIR SPRAY B ATTERIES            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                      13.99
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           13.99

 101063  CABAY & COMPANY, INC           SANITARY SU PPLIES & UTENSILS   RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER           1,788.36
                                        ARROW MARKE R BOARD             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           147.81
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,936.17

 101064  CHRISTINA CALHOUN              REFUND RECI TAL TICKETS         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L                        22.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           22.00

 101065  CARQUEST AUTO PARTS STORES     MOTOR OIL                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT          7.90
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL            7.90

 101066  CENTURY TILE SUPPLY COMPANY    THERMO SILE NT                  PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                     196.47
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          196.47

 101067  CHICAGO METROPOLITAN AGENCY    FY 2016 LOC AL CONTRIBUTION     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT            237.12
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          237.12



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  10
TIME: 11:35:42                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 101068  COMCAST                        INTERNET CH ARGES               PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   394.85
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          394.85

 101069  COMFORT ZONE                   FURNISH & I NSTALL FURNACE      PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                     1,973.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,973.00

 101070  COMMUNITY PLUMBING COMPANY     SULLIVAN FI ELDS, IRRIGATION RE PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       178.51
                                        DRINKING FO UNTAIN CLOGGED      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             113.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          291.51

 101071  COMPASS MINERALS               COARSE ROCK  SALT               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,480.43
                                        COARSE ROCK  SALT               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,420.28
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        4,900.71

 101072  CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY        ELECTRIC SE RVICE               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION                6.79
                                        STREET LIGH TING                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION           17,361.52
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       17,368.31

 101073  CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY        DEDUCTIBLE- CHECK STOLEN        LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND / LIAB ILITY INSURANCE       1,000.00
                                        INSURANCE -  CHECK STOLEN       LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND / LIAB ILITY INSURANCE      17,135.64
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       18,135.64

 101074  CONTROL SERVICE INC            AERATOR DRI VE REPAIR           WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT      3,065.75
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        3,065.75

 101075  JOE  CRAMER                    WATER/SEWER  CREDIT REFUND      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER & SEWER            65.51
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           65.51

 101076  CROWN RESTROOMS                MERRY MAN R ENTALS              PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       364.50
                                        EMRICSON & SULLIVAN FIELD      PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       146.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          511.00

 101077  DAHM ENTERPRISES INC           SLUDGE DISP OSAL                WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT      4,046.40
                                        SLUDGE REMO VAL                 WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT     12,480.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       16,526.40

 101078  DEERY-PARDUE & ASSOCIATES INC  DRINKING FO UNTAIN PARTS        PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        82.37
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           82.37



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  11
TIME: 11:35:42                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 101079  DOOR SERVICES, INC             DOOR SERVIC E                   PUBLIC LIBRARY BUILDING FUND / LIBRARY BUILDING        428.00
                                        SERVICE TO DOOR                PUBLIC LIBRARY BUILDING FUND / LIBRARY BUILDING      1,059.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,487.00

 101080  ECIVIS, INC                    LICENSE FOR  GRANT SOFTWARE     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERAL GOVERNMENT          4,400.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        4,400.00

 101081  BRANDON EDDY                   EMPLOYEE HE ALTH REIMB 2015     HEALTH/LIFE INSURANCE FUND /                           100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          100.00

 101082  FOXCROFT MEADOWS, INC.         SOD, WOOD P ALLETS              PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       129.00
                                        PARK IN THE  SQUARE SOD         PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       144.00
                                        PARK IN THE  SQUARE SOD         PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       148.20
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          421.20

 101083  DAVID G. ETERNO                ADMNISTRAVE  HEARING SERVICE    ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUDICATION / A DMINISTRATIVE AD      1,087.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,087.50

 101084  FASTENAL COMPANY               ZIP TIES FO R WIND SCREEN       PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       314.70
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          314.70

 101085  FIRST PLACE PROMOTIONS         AWARDS                         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           299.16
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          299.16

 101086  JAMIE PIERCE                   DANCE COSTU MES                 GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           110.27
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          110.27

 101087  GAVERS ASPHALT PAVING          AUTUMN RIDG E RELIEF STORM SEWE CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STORMWATER MANAG     22,622.72
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       22,622.72

 101088  SYNCHRONY BANK                 PAINT SUPPL IES                 PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        78.05
                                        BOOTS                          PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        34.99
                                        UNIFORMS                       PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       116.67
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          229.71

 101089  COURTNEE GONZALEZ              RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              20.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           20.00



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  12
TIME: 11:35:42                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 101090  GRAINGER                       AUD CEILING  PAINTING           PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                      82.31
                                        AUD. CEILIN G PAINTING          PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                      82.31
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          164.62

 101091  GREAT LAKES COCA-COLA          SUPPLIES                       RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             497.81
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          497.81

 101092  HAAS SERVICE SYSTEM            JANITORIAL SERVICES-FEB & MAR  PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                   3,100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        3,100.00

 101093  HAMPTON, LENZINI & RENWICK INC MAPLES OF T HE SONATAS          ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                           158.00
                                        2015 RESURF ACING               CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STREETS/SIDEWALK     10,902.50
                                        ZIMMERMAN R OAD                 CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STORMWATER MANAG      2,168.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       13,228.50

 101094  HD SUPPLY                      MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        141.45
                                        CLAMP                          WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        217.46
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          358.91

 101095  CHAS. HERDRICH & SON, INC.     SUPPLIES                       PERFORMING ARTS FUND / CAFE                             84.25
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           84.25

 101096  HIZEL PLUMBING                 TOILET REPA IR                  PUBLIC LIBRARY BUILDING FUND / LIBRARY BUILDING        134.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          134.00

 101097  HI VIZ INC                     SIGNS                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              353.56
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          353.56

 101098  HOME STATE BANK                EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERAL                    57,204.28
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION          58,917.38
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                   819.80
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             819.80
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                    12,679.85
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                   6,182.02
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                10,724.44
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER & SEWER        22,456.86
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL      169,804.43



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  13
TIME: 11:35:43                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 101099  HOMETOWN LTD                   R.O.W. DEPO SIT                 ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                           100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          100.00

 101100  HYDRO-VISION TECHNOLOGY LLC    FLUSHING, C LEANING, TELEVISING WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER/SEWER CAPI      8,000.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        8,000.00

 101101  ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF         SERVICE, SI GNALS               MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND / MOTOR FUE L TAX                 3,659.40
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        3,659.40

 101102  INDEPTH GRAPHICS               SUMMER 2015  CITY SCENE         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION         7,249.00
                                        SUMMER 2015  CITY SCENE         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT          4,832.00
                                        SPRING DANC E RECITAL PROGRAM   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION           459.00
                                        WOODSTOCK C HALLENGE UPDATE     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION           384.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       12,924.50

 101103  INTERSTATE BATTERY             BATTERIES                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         76.90
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           76.90

 101104  INTERTRADE USA COMPANY         CAFE SUPPLI ES                  PERFORMING ARTS FUND / CAFE                          2,406.67
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,406.67

 101105  VICKIE JOHNSON                 WATER/SEWER  REFUND             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER & SEWER           221.10
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          221.10

 101106  LANDS' END BUSINESS            UNIFORMS                       AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                   145.00
                                        UNIFORMS                       RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             551.97
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          696.97

 101107  LEE JENSEN SALES CO            STRAINER, A LUMINUM SKID        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        166.10
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          166.10

 101108  SALLY R. LESCHER               INSTRUCTOR CONTRACT            RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              58.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           58.50

 101109  MARIA A LOPEZ                  LOST BOOK R EIMBURSMENT         PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                     9.99
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL            9.99

 101110  LUCAS HOLDINGS LLC             SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   567.55
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          567.55



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  14
TIME: 11:35:43                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 101111  MDC ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES     APRIL TOTER S                   ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT FUND /  ENVIRONMENTAL M     85,556.30
                                        YARDWASTE S TICKERS             ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                         2,400.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       87,956.30

 101112  JOE MC CORMACK                 ART HANGING  WARE               PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                      35.69
                                        MIC STAND                      PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                      15.95
                                        GREASE FOR WINCH MOTORS        PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                       6.92
                                        WHEELS FOR SOUND COUNSEL       PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                      72.13
                                        NEW VACUUM FOR OPERA HOUSE     PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                     103.99
                                        SOUND/LIGHT ING TBL FOR AUD     PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                     104.98
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          339.66

 101113  M . J. PLUMBING INC            JETTER FEE                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        365.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          365.00

 101114  MCHENRY ANALYTICAL WATER       SAMPLE TEST ING                 WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         130.00
                                        OUTSIDE TES TING                WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        135.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          265.00

 101115  M F M A                        MEMBERSHIP FEE- MILLER/LANZ    GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR         30.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           30.00

 101116  MC HENRY COUNTY COUNCIL OF     DINNER MEET ING EXPENSE         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT             30.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           30.00

 101117  MC HENRY COUNTY DIVISION OF    PACE SERVIC ES - JANUARY 2015   PARATRANSIT FUND / PARATRANSIT                       2,196.93
                                        PACE SERVIC ES - FEBRUARY 2015  PARATRANSIT FUND / PARATRANSIT                       1,834.59
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        4,031.52

 101118  MENARDS                        AIR FILTER                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          20.94
                                        PIPE WRENCH ES, DURA INK, TRASH CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STREETS/SIDEWALK        198.84
                                        DE-WINTERIZ ING SUPPLIES        PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                         3.56
                                        MATERIALS &  SUPPLIES           AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                    79.92
                                        MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              156.35
                                        PVC                            WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         54.72
                                        MATERIALS &  SUPPLIES           AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                    16.47
                                        BASE PLATE,  SCAFFOLD, OUTRIGGE PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HOUSE                     238.95
                                        PLUMBING PA RTS                 WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         67.00



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  15
TIME: 11:35:43                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 101118  MENARDS                        BOLT, WASHE R, EYEBOLT/NUT      PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                       5.45
                                        POLY SPRAYE R                   CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STREETS/SIDEWALK         29.98
                                        PARK SUPPLI ES                  PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        10.78
                                        DRILL BIT/D RILL/PUSH NUT       AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                    14.77
                                        BASE PLATE,  LEVELING JACK      PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                      44.97
                                        WATER WORKS  LADDER             AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                    18.58
                                        WATCH WORK FEATURE PRIMER      AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                    14.88
                                        LIGHTENING DETECTOR SIGNS      PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        98.83
                                        MERRYMAN SH OP SUPPLIES         PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        57.53
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,132.52

 101119  METRO PROFESSIONAL PRODUCTS, I SUPPLIES                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         51.50
                                        SUPPLIES                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         99.70
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          151.20

 101120  METROPOLITAN INDUSTRIES, INC.  REPAIR TO P UMP, WANDA LIFT STA WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA      9,866.00
                                        SERVICE TO DRY PIT PUMP        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA      3,020.00
                                        SWITCH MECH ANICAL FLOAT        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        746.00
                                        180 SEC 8 P IN RELAY REPLACEMEN WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        150.00
                                        120V HOUR M ETER                WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         73.42
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       13,855.42

 101121  MIDAS TOUCH COMPANY            FLATBED TOW ING                 POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             175.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          175.00

 101122  MINUTEMAN/POWERBOSS            MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              424.75
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          424.75

 101123  MULTI-BANK SERVICES, LTD.      INVESTMENT FEE - APRIL         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L                        99.27
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           99.27

 101124  JOYCE A NARDULLI LLC           MAY, 2015 R ETAINER FEE         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT          5,000.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        5,000.00

 101125  NAPOLI PIZZA                   PIZZA FOR T HE SENIORS          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY EVENTS               55.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           55.00

 101126  ERNIE NELSON                   CELL PHONE REIMBURSEMENT       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR         80.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           80.00



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  16
TIME: 11:35:43                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 101127  MAILFINANCE                    LEASE PAYME NT- POSTAGE METER   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANC E DEPARTMENT          1,524.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,524.00

 101128  FRED'S UPHOLSTERY SHOP         WEIGHT BENC HES UPHOLSTERED     RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             395.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          395.00

 101129  NORTH SUBURBAN LIBRARY         4TH QTR SER VICE- ACCESS        PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                 5,979.48
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        5,979.48

 101130  NICOR                          UTILITY-GAS                     RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             885.92
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        26.32
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         40.74
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         28.45
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         81.44
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                    96.74
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                    98.47
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         27.28
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        415.40
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         23.17
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         31.95
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         26.10
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         72.37
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,854.35

 101131  OPP. FRANCHISING, INC.         MAY 2015 CI TY HALL CUSTODIAL   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                   1,373.00
                                        MAY 2015 RE C CTR CUSTODIAL     RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER           1,507.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,880.00

 101132  STANDARD EQUIPMENT COMPANY     MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              355.05
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          355.05

 101133  PEPSI-COLA GENERAL BOTTLER, IN PROGRAM SUP PLIES               RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             152.35
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          152.35

 101134  POOLBLU                        CHEMICALS                      RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             607.25
                                        PARTS AND L ABOR                AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                   458.32
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,065.57



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  17
TIME: 11:35:43                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 101135  PORKIES PIG ROAST              2015 LIQUOR  LIC. DEPOSIT REF   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L                       500.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          500.00

 101136  ELLIE POWELL                   DANCE COSTU MES                 GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            29.87
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           29.87

 101137  RALPH'S GENERAL RENT-ALL       STUMP GRIND ER                  PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                     1,070.16
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,070.16

 101138  RANGER REDI MIX INC            CONCRETE AN D FIBER             CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STREETS/SIDEWALK        327.00
                                        CONCRETE                       CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STREETS/SIDEWALK      2,014.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,341.00

 101139  BEVERLY REYCRAFT               WATER/SEWER  CREDIT REFUND      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER & SEWER            46.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           46.00

 101140  RIDGEVIEW ELECTRIC INC         ELECTRICAL WORK WELL #12       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       1,170.00
                                        ELECTRICAL MATERIALS WELL #12  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         617.00
                                        BACKUP GENE RATOR WELL#12       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER/SEWER CAPI      5,450.00
                                        BACK UP GEN ERATOR- ALT SITE    WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER/SEWER CAPI      5,400.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       12,637.00

 101141  SAMS CLUB                      SUPPLIES                       PERFORMING ARTS FUND / CAFE                            138.35
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          138.35

 101142  RON SCHMITT                    FUEL, EPOXY  CLEANER            AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                     8.25
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL            8.25

 101143  SCHINDLER ELEVATOR CORP.       MAINTENANCE  AGREEMENT FY 2016  PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                   3,594.12
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        3,594.12

 101144  BECKY VIDALES                  RED CROSS W ORKSHOP             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            40.25
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           40.25

 101145  SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO            WATER WORKS  PAINT              AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                   212.75
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          212.75

 101146  KIM SIMMONDS                   MAY 30, 201 5 SAVOY BROWN DEP   PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                   3,500.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        3,500.00



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  18
TIME: 11:35:43                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 101147  DANIEL SIMMONS                 BOILER SERV ICE                 AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                   450.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          450.00

 101148  ROBIN SOBEL                    RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             273.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          273.00

 101149  STAN'S OFFICE TECHNOLOGIES, IN PRINTER CAR TRIDGE              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR         87.25
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           87.25

 101150  A. D. STARR                    REPLICA JER SEYS                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION         2,844.86
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,844.86

 101151  BEVERLY STEWART                WOMEN'S GOL F REFUND            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L                        15.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           15.00

 101152  SUBSURFACE SOLUTIONS           RADIODETECT ION RECEIVER        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA      5,089.00
                                        RADIODETECT ION TRANSMITTER     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA      2,478.00
                                        CARRYING BA G                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        150.00
                                        RECHARABLE BATTERY             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        524.00
                                        RING CLAMP                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        355.00
                                        FREIGHT                        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         40.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        8,636.00

 101153  THOMPSON'S APPLIANCE           DELIVER, IN STALL NEW DRYER     RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER           1,799.97
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,799.97

 101154  THOR GUARD, INC.               LIGHTNING I NFORMATION POSTERS  PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       131.68
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          131.68

 101155  TICKET RETURN SOFTWARE         ONLINE SING LE TICKET SALES FEE ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                         1,143.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,143.50

 101156  TODAYS BUSINESS SOLUTIONS INC  COMMUNICATI ONS                 PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    95.36
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           95.36

 101157  TUMBLEWEED PRESS INC           SUBSCRIPTIO N                   PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   499.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          499.00



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  19
TIME: 11:35:43                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 101158  PUMP HOUSE                     DANCE RECIT AL BOUQUETS         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            50.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           50.00

 101159  UNITED LABORATORIES            MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              220.36
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          220.36

 101160  VIKING CHEMICAL COMPANY        CHEMICALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,784.00
                                        CHEMICALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT      -1,680.00
                                        CHEMICALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT      1,268.00
                                        CHEMICALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT      2,580.75
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        4,952.75

 101161  WATER SERVICES                 CITY WIDE L EAK DETECTION SURVE WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER/SEWER CAPI     13,312.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       13,312.50

 101162  WELCH BROS., INC.              MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              830.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          830.00

 101163  WOODSTOCK AUTO BODY            DEDUCTIBLE-  POLICE AUTO        LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND / LIAB ILITY INSURANCE       1,000.00
                                        AUTO REPAIR - POLICE            ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                           195.97
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,195.97

 101164  WOODSTOCK CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  BOSS BUCKS                     RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          100.00

 101165  WOODSTOCK COMMUNITY SCHOOL     GASOLINE US AGE - MARCH 2015    GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY & ECONOMIC D        127.00
                                        GASOLINE US AGE - MARCH 2015    PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                      38.25
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          165.25

 101166  WOODSTOCK INDEPENDENT          TWO YEAR SU BSCRIPTION          POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              65.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           65.00

 101167  WOODSTOCK LUMBER COMPANY       CONCRETE MI X                   CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STREETS/SIDEWALK         29.70
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           29.70

 101168  WOODSTOCK POWER EQUIPMENT, INC PARTS FOR Z ERO TURN MOWER      PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       232.28
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          232.28



DATE: 05/11/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  20
TIME: 11:35:44                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003664
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK # 100976 TO CHECK # 101174

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
 101169  YOUNG MASTERS MARTIAL ARTS     ROOM RENTAL - APRIL 2015        RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             630.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          630.00

 101170  JOSE M. ZAMORANO               SERVICE                        RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              70.00
                                        MAINTENANCE  SVC 05/01-05/05/15 RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          170.00

 101171  ZEE MEDICAL SERVICES           MEDICAL SUP PLIES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             107.80
                                        GLOVES                         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              41.79
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          149.59

 101172  DAVE ZINNEN                    NISRA BANQU ET                  SPECIAL RECREATION FUND / SPECI AL RECREATION            34.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           34.50

 101173  ZOIA MONUMENT COMPANY          PRO SERVICE S, CIVIL WAR MONUME CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / PARKS                 8,980.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        8,980.00

 101174  ZUKOWSKI, ROGERS, FLOOD &      LEGAL FEES                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY & ECONOMIC D      4,620.00
                                        LEGAL FEES                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT          4,083.75
                                        LEGAL FEES-  LIQUOR CONTROL     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT          2,268.75
                                        IMET TOOLIN G AGREEMENT         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANC E DEPARTMENT            371.25
                                        LEGAL FEES                     ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUDICATION / A DMINISTRATIVE AD      1,113.75
                                        WOODSTOCK T HEATER              TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND / TAX INCREMENT FI         41.25
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       12,498.75

                                                                                                       WARRANT TOTAL      594,339.29



















 

       City of    

               
 

Offi ce  of  the May or                                                            815 .338 .4302  

Dr .  Br ian  Sager ,  Mayo r                                                                                     FAX 815 .334 .2269  

121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                                                              mayo r@woods tocki l . go v  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                                            www.woodsto cki l . go v  

MEMORANDUM 
for 

Woodstock City Council Meeting 

May 19
th

, 2015 
To: Woodstock City Council 

From: Mayor Brian Sager 

Re: Appointment of City Clerk 

 

Colleagues: 

 

With the resignation of City Clerk Arleen Quinn following the April 21, 2015 City Council meeting, it 

is both necessary and appropriate to appoint a new City Clerk.  According to Title 1, Chapter 6, Article 

B.1A of the Woodstock City Code, the City Clerk is appointed by the Mayor with the advice and 

consent of the City Council.  The work of the City continues and requires that an active City Clerk be 

appointed to keep the official records of meetings, seal and attest documents and warrants, and record 

ordinances. Therefore, it is imperative the Council move immediately to appoint a new City Clerk. 

 

Executive Assistant Cindy Smiley has served as the Chief Deputy Clerk of the City of Woodstock for 

the past 9½ years.  During that time, she has, in her usual very professional and thorough manner, 

accurately and efficiently recorded the minutes of the City Council and its various Boards and 

Commissions.  Cindy has offered to step into the role of City Clerk and I am extremely pleased to 

nominate her for the position. Council will recall the annual salary for City Clerk is $5,000 plus $100 

per Board and Commission meeting, except for City Council meetings.  The salary would be effective 

immediately, retroactive to the start of the fiscal year, May 1, 2015, and added to and distributed over 

Cindy’s normal payroll in accordance with City payroll policies and procedures.  

 

Amy Weber has a done a fine job serving as Deputy City Clerk and would continue to serve in that 

capacity maintaining records of the meetings of various City Boards and Commissions as appointed 

and of the City Council as needed.  The annual salary for the Deputy Clerk is $2,500 paid on a monthly 

basis plus $100 per Board and Commission meeting.  

 

Your favorable consideration and affirmation of the appointment of Cindy Smiley as City Clerk 

and re-appointment of Amy Weber as Deputy Clerk, effective immediately, would be greatly 

appreciated. 

 

Respectfully,   

 
Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

Mayor  

http://www.woodstock-il.com/
mamraen
Typewritten Text
May 19, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 46a



 

 

       City of    

               
 

Office  of  the City Manager                                                  phone 815 .338 .4301  

Rosco e C.  S te l ford  I I I                                                      fax 815 .334 .2269  

121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                    c i t yman ager@woodsto cki l . go v  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                www.woodsto cki l . gov  

 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

  Roscoe C. Stelford III, City Manager 

 

FROM: Cindy Smiley 

  Executive Assistant 

 

DATE:  May 14, 2015 

 

RE: Amendment to Title 3, Chapter 3, Liquor Control, of the Woodstock City 

Code Creating Class E-5. 

 

 

The City Council is being asked to create a new classification of liquor license that would allow 

the service of alcohol at hotels within the community.  Specifically, the license classification 

would commonly be known as Hotel Small Bar and In-room Minibar. 

 

Class E-5 

The proposed Class E-5 Liquor License would permit the retail sale and service of alcoholic 

liquor for consumption or use on the licensed premises maintaining a small bar with eight (8) or 

fewer seats and/or portable bar cart, and the retail sale of individual units of alcoholic liquor for 

consumption or use on the licensed premises from in-room minibars. 

 

It is proposed that the fee for the Class E-5 license be set at $1,000.00 per year as it will permit 

the sale of alcoholic liquor for consumption on the licensed premises only and will not permit the 

sale of alcohol by package. 

 

If Council is supportive of this request, approval is recommended of the attached 

Ordinance, identified as Document No. _________, An Ordinance Amending Title 3, 

Chapter 3, Liquor Control, of the Woodstock City Code, which would create Classification 

E-5. 

 

It is noted that, should Council choose to remove this item from the Consent Agenda for 

further discussion, it would also be necessary to remove the following item requesting the 

lifting of the moratorium on applications for a Class E-5 Liquor License for the business 

located at 990 Lake Avenue, Woodstock. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
May 19, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 46b

mamraen
Typewritten Text
1



  

 

 

Liquor Control Amendments, Page 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-O-_________ 

 

An Ordinance Amending Section 3.3.6, Classification of Licenses;  

Number and Fees, of the Woodstock City Code 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the CITY COUNCIL of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry 

County, Illinois, as follows: 

 

SECTION ONE:  That Section 3.3.6B, Classifications shall be amended to 

add the following liquor license classification: 

 

E-5 Permits the retail sale and service of alcoholic liquor for 

consumption or use on the licensed premises maintaining a small 

bar with eight (8) or fewer seats and/or portable bar cart, and the 

retail sale of individual units of alcoholic liquor for consumption or 

use on the licensed premises from in-room minibars. (Hotel Small 

Bar and In-room Minibar) 

  

SECTION TWO: That Section 3.3.6C, Number and Fees, of the Woodstock 

City Code shall be amended to include Class E-5 as follows: 

 

C. Number and Fees:  The following number of licenses and license fees shall be charged 

for each liquor license classification: 

 

 

Class Number 

Available 

Fee Effective 

May 1, 2011 

A-1 6 $2,000.00 

A-2 11 $1,500.00 

A-4 1 $1,500.00 

A-5 0 $1,000.00 

A-6 4 $1,600.00 

A-7 0 $1,800.00 

B-1 2 $2,000.00 

B-2 4 $1,200.00 

B-3 5 $1,500.00 

B-4a 0 $1,100.00 

B-4b 0 $1,200.00 

B-4c 1 $1,300.00 

B-5 0 $1,500.00 

B-6 1 $1,200.00 

B-7 0 $1,200.00 

B-8 1 $   600.00 

B-9 0 $   600.00 

C-1 1 $1,200.00 

C-2 1 $   800.00 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.1



  

 

 

Liquor Control Amendments, Page 2 

D 4 $1,200.00 

E-1 5 $   600.00 

E-2 0 $   700.00 

E-3 1 $   500.00 

E-4 0 $1,200.00 

E-5 0 $1,000.00 

H 0 $1,600.00 

I 0 $   800.00 

J 0 $   800.00 

K   

KK 0 $   800.00 

L  $   800.00 

M-1  $   150.00 per day 

M-2  $    50.00 one day 

$  100.00 2-29 days 

$  150.00 30-60 days 

N  $    50.00 per day 

 

SECTION THREE: If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision 

of this Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such 

judgment shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which remainder 

shall remain and continue in full force and effect. 

 

 SECTION FOUR: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

 SECTION FIVE: This Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance     and 

shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval and publication in pamphlet form 

(which publication is hereby authorized) as provided by law. 

 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

 APPROVED: 

 

      

 Mayor Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST:      

City Clerk 

 

Passed:      

Approved:      

Published:      



  

 

 

Liquor Control Amendments, Page 3 

 

 

 

C E R T I F I C A T I O N 
 

 I, __________________, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, acting and 

qualified Clerk of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, and that as such Clerk, I am 

the keeper of the records and minutes and proceedings of the Mayor and Council members of 

said City. 

 

 I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the Woodstock City Council, held 

on the    day of     , 2015, the foregoing Ordinance entitled An 

Ordinance Amending Section 3.3.6, Classification of Licenses; Number and Fees, of the 

Woodstock City Code, was duly passed by said City Council. 

 

 The pamphlet form of Ordinance No. 15-O-____, including the Ordinance and a cover 

sheet thereof, was prepared, and a copy of such Ordinance was posted in the City Hall, 

commencing on the    day of      , 2015, and continuing 

for at least 10 days thereafter.  Copies of such Ordinance were also available for public 

inspection upon request in the office of the City Clerk. 

 

 I do further certify that the original, of which the attached is a true and correct copy, is 

entrusted to me as the Clerk of said City for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful custodian and 

keeper of the same. 

 

 GIVEN under my hand and corporate seal of the City of Woodstock this    day of 

    , 2015. 

 

 

     

City Clerk 

City of Woodstock, 

McHenry County, Illinois 

(SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

       City of    

               
 

Office  of  the City Manager                                                  phone 815 .338 .4301  

Rosco e C.  S te l ford  I I I                                                      fax 815 .334 .2269  

121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                    c i t yman ager@woodsto cki l . go v  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                www.woodsto cki l . gov  

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

  Roscoe C. Stelford III, City Manager 

 

FROM: Cindy Smiley 

  Executive Assistant 

 

DATE:  May 14, 2015 

 

RE: Waiver of the Moratorium on the Acceptance of Class E-5 Liquor License 

Application for Best Western Hotel, 990 Lake Ave, Woodstock  

 

Henry Patel, owner of the Best Western Hotel located at 990 Lake Avenue in Woodstock, has 

requested a waiver of the moratorium on the Class E-5 Liquor License the Council is considering 

at its May 19, 2015 meeting.  At its April 7, 2015 meeting, the City Council imposed an 

indefinite moratorium on the acceptance of all liquor license applications except for K, KK, M1, 

M2, N1 and N2 licenses.  As a result, the moratorium on liquor license applications will be 

extended over all license classifications, including newly created classifications, unless 

otherwise exempted by Council action.  

 

Should the City Council create a new E-5 classification of liquor license permitting the retail sale 

and service of alcoholic liquor at hotels within the community, a Hotel Small Bar and In-room 

Minibar License, Mr. Patel is requesting the opportunity to apply for such license, thereby 

requiring the City Council to waive the moratorium on the acceptance of an application for the 

newly created license.  

 

It should be noted that the waiver would be for property located at 990 Lake Avenue only and 

that issuance of a liquor license to the owner at that address would result in the first Class E-5 

Hotel Small Bar and In-room Minibar License.  Should Council approve the requested waiver, 

the owner will meet with the Liquor Commissioner and come before the body in a subsequent 

meeting to request approval of the license for the business.  The owner has been specifically 

informed that the approval of this waiver does not guarantee approval of a liquor license 

application. 

 

If Council is supportive of the creation of the E-5, Hotel Small Bar and In-room Minibar, 

License presented in the previous item for consideration and this request, a motion would 

be in order to waive the moratorium on the acceptance of applications for a Class E-5 

Liquor License for the 990 Lake Avenue location only, with the understanding this is not a 

guarantee of license approval and that it is a one-time waiver for this location only.   

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
May 19, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 46c



       City of    

               
Department of  Building & Zoning  phone 815.338.4305  
121 W. Calhoun Street                                                fax  815.334-2267 
Woodstock, I l l ino is 60098                           commdevdept@woodstocki l .gov  

                                                     www.woodstockil.gov 

  

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:  May 12, 2015 

 

TO:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 

FROM: Nancy Baker, City Planner 

 

RE: Transmittal of Recommendation for Façade Improvement Funds for 100-108 

N. Benton, 112-114 Cass, and 110 S. Johnson Street 

 

Three applications for façade improvement funding totaling $47,611.58 for projects at 100-108 

N. Benton Street, 112-114 Cass Street, and 110 S. Johnson Street are recommended for approval 

at this time.  The aforementioned applications were received by the February 2, 2015 deadline 

and include all required project information. 

 

100-108 N. Benton Street 

The 100-108 N. Benton Street building known as the Murphy Block was constructed in 1875.  

The southernmost storefront was remodeled in the early 20
th

 century for the First National Bank 

of Woodstock.  The entire storefront level of the building was remodeled in the 1960s at which 

time new brick was installed, angled storefronts were created for 104, 106, and 108 N. Benton, 

and traditional storefront elements were eliminated from the front of the bank which occupied 

100 and 102 N. Benton.  

 

The applicant has requested Façade Improvement Program funds totaling $27,244.08 to recreate 

two storefronts out of the former bank space.  The storefronts will be similar in design to the 

three smaller spaces to the north.  The project also includes the installation of awnings over the 

100 and 102 N. Benton storefronts and the installation of four new windows on the first floor of 

the E. Jackson Street side (two windows in openings that are currently bricked in and two 

windows that do match the others).  The project cost reflects only some of the labor because the 

applicant will perform some work himself.   

 

 
 

http://www.woodstockil.gov/
mamraen
Typewritten Text
May 19, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 46d



The Historic Preservation Commission has reviewed this project and approved a Certificate of 

Appropriateness.   

 

 

   

  
   

 

 

 

 

112-114 Cass Street 

The original portion of the 112 Cass Street building, known as the Kendall Block, was 

constructed in 1883.  The front façade was remodeled and an addition (west half of the building) 

was constructed around 1921.  Windows on both the Main Street and Cass Street sides are 

deteriorated and are allowing water to damage the interior of the building.  It is noted that the 

second floor is currently vacant and that the condition of the windows is a significant deterrent to 

anyone interested in leasing the space.    

 

The property owner is currently using façade funding to restore the transom windows facing 

Cass Street.  The restored transom windows proposed for this project will also be re-installed 

concurrent with the new windows on the Cass Street side.  Additional Façade Improvement 

Program funds totaling $16,992.50 are requested to install new windows below the restored 

transoms and to install new windows on the Main Street side of the building.   

 



The Historic Preservation Commission has approved a Certificate of Appropriateness to install 

new aluminum clad wood windows on both the Cass and Main Street sides of the building. 

  

 

  
 

 

The photos below were submitted to the Historic Preservation Commission as part of the 

Certificate of Appropriateness application. 

     
 

 

110 S. Johnson Street 
 

The Woodstock Square Mall building was built in two different sections--the original part of this 

structure was constructed in 1929 for Montgomery Ward.  A large addition was added in 1942.  

A major remodeling and rehabilitation was completed in the 1980s and plywood panels were 

installed above the storefront windows where transom windows were originally located.  The 

plywood has become rotted and needs to be replaced.  This work will require the awning 

framework to be removed and reinstalled.  The applicant has requested $3,375 for this project. 



 

  
 

  

The Façade Improvement Program Committee has reviewed all three applications and 

determined they meet the program eligibility requirements as specified below: 

 

 The projects are located in the TIF district. 

 The property owners are not in default of any municipal fees, taxes etc. 

 The property owners do not have any outstanding building, zoning, or city code 

violations. 

 The proposed improvements will be visible from the public right of way. 

 The proposed improvements conform to the Historic Preservation Commission’s Design 

Review Guidelines. 

 

The Façade Program specifies that projects are to be evaluated utilizing the following factors: 

 

Impact of proposed work on preservation of the structure:  All three projects will 

eliminate problems which could lead to deterioration of other building features. 

 

Aesthetic impact:  The 100-108 N. Benton project will significantly improve the 

building and street aesthetics by restoring the traditional storefront rhythm. 

 



Consistency with announced special emphasis areas (if any):  There are currently no 

special emphasis areas. 

 

Applicant’s demonstrated previous commitment to preservation:  The owners of all 

three properties have consistently kept their properties well maintained. None of the 

owners created the problems that these projects will rectify.  

 

Thoroughness of the application:  Required information has been provided. 

 

Equity:  All three property owners have received prior façade improvement funding.  

The owners of 100-108 Benton and 110 S. Johnson have completed their projects and 

been reimbursed.  After consultation with city staff, the 112-114 Cass Street transom 

window re-installation is on hold pending the approval of the additional work to allow for 

a better final appearance. 

 

Demonstrated financial capability of applicant:  No financial capability information 

was provided, however, these applicants are long time property owners in Woodstock.   

 

Funding availability/feasibility.  The FY15/16 budget includes $66,000 for Façade 

Improvement projects.  If these projects are approved as recommended, the total cost to 

the City will be $47,611.58.   

 

 

The following action is recommended: 

 

That the City Council approve a motion allocating $27,244.08 for the storefront, 

awning, and window project at 100-108 N. Benton St., $16,992.50 for window 

replacement at 112-144 Cass Street, and $3,375.00 for replacement of wood 

panels above the storefront windows at 110 S. Johnson Street from the FY15/16 

Façade Improvement Program.  All expenditures are to be charged to account # 

41-00-7-723, Façade Improvement Program. 

rstelford
Approved













































…………………… ………… …………………… ………… …………………… ………… …………………… ……..  

 

Adminis tra t ion   ♦    Parks    ♦    Stree t  Mainte nance    ♦    Eng ineer ing  

Sewer  & Water  Conveyanc e    ♦    Water  Treatment    ♦    Wastewater  Treatment  

 

       City of    

               
 
Department of  Public  Works      815 /338 -6118  ♦ Fax 815 /334 -2263  
326  Washingt on  St reet   awi l son@woods t ock i l .gov  
Woods t ock ,  I l l inoi s  60098   www.woods t ock i l .gov  

 

 

 

To: ` Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 

From:  Alan Wilson, City Engineer 

 

Re: Recommendation to Waive Requirements for Competitive Bids and 

Approval to Hire Nierman Landscape & Design, Inc. for the 2015 Downtown 

Brick Pavement Replacement Program 

 

Date: May 11, 2015 

 

 

The Downtown Brick Replacement program is an annual maintenance program designed to 

remove, replace and repair areas on and around the Square where the bricks have deteriorated 

and repair is necessary in order to maintain the character of the community and the identity of 

the historic Woodstock Square.  

 

Since 2009, Nierman Landscape & Design, Inc. has completed the brick removal and 

replacement work in the downtown area.  In 2013, the Public Works Department prepared 

specifications and solicited proposals from three (3) local contractors in order to ensure that the 

City was receiving the most competitive price for this annual maintenance program. Nierman 

Landscape & Design, Inc. was the low bidder and they were subsequently awarded the 2013 

contract. They held their price the same in 2014 and were awarded the contract again. 

 

Due to the unique challenges involved with this type of work and the fact that the City has an 

experienced, qualified local firm that has successfully completed this type of work in the past with 

no issues or complaints from the business owners, the Department of Public Works is 

recommending that Nierman Landscape & Design, Inc. be awarded the contract to complete the 

2015 Downtown Brick Pavement Replacement program.  They have agreed to hold the same 

prices for this year’s program that they quoted for last year’s program. 

 

The approved FY15/16 TIF budget allocates $20,000 in line item 41-00-7-725 to hire a contractor 

to complete brick pavement replacement work.  The revenue for the TIF budget is derived 

exclusively from a property tax levied only in the downtown area of Woodstock and those funds 

cannot be used to pay for any improvements outside of the TIF boundaries.  There is no General 

Fund revenue used to pay for these downtown improvements. 

 

 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
May 19, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 46e



The City replenished our supply of replacement bricks for this annual project last fiscal year. We 

anticipate our current supply will be sufficient for another 1-2 years, given normal use. 

 

It is recommended that the requirement for competitive bids be waived for this project and 

that the City hire Nierman Landscape & Design, Inc., to complete the downtown brick 

pavement replacement work for a total cost not to exceed $20,000. 
 

Note: A waiver of the competitive bid requirements does require a super majority vote (2/3 of the 

corporate authorities) for approval. 

 

rstelford
Approved



 

   
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

 

       City of    

               
 

Department of  Publ ic  Works                                                  phone 815 .338 . 6118  

326  Washin gton  St reet                                                      fax 815 .334 .226 3  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                                      ageorge@wood stocki l . go v  

                                               www.woodsto cki l . gov  

 

To: Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 

From: Anne George, Wastewater Treatment Superintendent 

 

Re: Approval to Purchase a New Wastewater Treatment Plant Influent Grinder 

 

Date: May 5, 2015 

 

There is a grinder at the head works of the City’s Southside Wastewater Treatment Plant that all 

the influent flow passes through to reduce the size of rags, clothing, sticks, and other debris that 

could potentially plug pumps, pipes, or cause operational issues somewhere within the treatment 

process.  Without a grinder in place, a manually-raked bar screen is used to separate materials 

entering the treatment plant that might otherwise plug or allow larger debris to pass by that can 

cause damage to equipment downstream.  If debris stacks up on the bar screen, influent flow 

measurements are exaggerated and flow into the facility is restricted.  During periods of rain and 

high flow when the grinder is out of service, it may be necessary to have a plant operator come in 

on overtime to clear debris from the bar screen to maintain adequate capacity in the sanitary 

sewer collection system. 

 

The influent grinder system at the Southside plant was originally purchased and installed in 

2002.  This equipment is in service 24/7 and, by design, takes a large degree of abuse breaking 

down all material and debris that enters the treatment plant.  Actual service life of this type of 

equipment varies greatly for each application due to the hardness, volume, and concentration of 

the materials within the sanitary sewer system.  The manufacturer claims that based on design, a 

new or reconditioned grinder will typically provide a service life of approximately five to seven 

years.   

 

In 2007, a reconditioned grinder was purchased and installed at the Southside Wastewater 

Treatment Plant.  This grinder has now been in service for approximately eight years and is 

showing signs of significant wear.  The cutters on the lower end of the cutter stack of the existing 

grinder have worn smooth and material passing through is not being adequately reduced in size.  

Further wear will reduce its efficiency and effectiveness. 

http://www.woodstockil.gov/
mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text
May 19, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 46f



 

The manufacturer, JWC Environmental, has proposed to replace the grinder with a new 2014 

model unit with an updated design from the existing 2002 model at a cost of $25,962; the cost to 

purchase a reconditioned unit is $24,217.  They have stated that the City will benefit from the 

updated design and materials utilized 

on the 2014 model.  This unit would 

have a greater likelihood of surpassing 

the expected service life based upon 

their experience and the improvements 

that they have built into the equipment.  

Incurring a marginal additional cost for 

a new grinder over a reconditioned 

grinder appears to be in the City’s best 

interest from a lifecycle cost 

perspective.  JWC Environmental, as 

the manufacturer, is the sole provider 

of this equipment.  As a result, the City 

is unable to provide comparative 

pricing for this equipment from 

multiple vendors. 

 

The City allocated $26,000 in the 

approved FY15/16 Budget to pay for 

this anticipated purchase.  The 

equipment purchase will be expensed 

to line item #60-54-7-779, in the Water 

and Sewer CIP Fund titled Wastewater 

Treatment Plant Maintenance. 

 

Since this involves the purchase of equipment from a sole-source provider, the City Attorney’s 

Office has determined that a waiver of competitive bids will not be required for this purchase.  

However, the City Council should waive the purchasing requirement identified within City Code 

Section 1.1.6A.5B, Purchases, which mandates the need for three bids. 

 

Therefore, it is recommended that the City Council approve the purchase of a new influent 

grinder in the amount of $25,962 from JWC Environmental, Buford, GA, for installation at 

the Southside Wastewater Treatment Plant bearing the manufacturer’s model number 

CDD3210-XDS2.0 and waive the purchasing requirement outlined by City Code Section 

1.1.6A.5B, Purchases, requiring the need to acquire three bids. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

c:  Paul Ruscko, Public Words Director 

Jeff Van Landuyt, Assistant Public Works Director 

 JWC Environmental   

rstelford
Approved


	May 19, 2015 City Council Agenda
	A. Minutes- May 5, 2015 Meeting
	B. Warrants:
	3663 
	3664

	C. Minutes and Reports:
	Economic Development Commission Minutes - April 28, 2015

	D. Manager's Report No.46
	1. Appointment of City Clerk and Deputy City Clerk
	2. Liquor Amendment
	Doc.1

	3. Liquor Waiver
	4. Facade Improvements
	5. Award of Contract - Brick Replacement 
	6. Purchase - Grinder




